
P a g e  | 1 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced 

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113. 

         

CITY OF SWEET HOME 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
MEETING AGENDA   
October 7, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 3225 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 
 
PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call of Commissioners:  

Lance Gatchell (Chair); Henry Wolthuis (Vice Chairperson); Eva Jurney; Greg Stephens; Thomas 
Herb, Greg Korn (excused absence), Jeff Parker 

3. Public Comment. This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning 
Commission on topics that are not listed on the agenda. 

4. Meeting Minutes: July 1, 2019; August 5, 2019; September 3, 2019 

5. Public Hearing for File CU19-07: The applicant has requested a Conditional Use Permit in order to 
establish a retail marijuana store in an existing building. The subject property contains 14,625 
square feet and is in the Commercial Highway (C-2) Zone. 

6. Staff Update on Planning Projects 

• Planning Commission Retreat:  
o Oct. 16-17 from 6-9 PM  
o Only Commissioner Jurney and Commissioner Parker completed the poll (each of 

them has days they can’t make it) 
• Code Amendment Update – CEDD Director Larsen 

 
7. Adjournment 

 

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled.  If you have a disability that requires 
accommodation, advanced notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development 
Office at (541) 367-8113.  

Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community and 
Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the meeting 
and give testimony verbally.  Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so by the Chair 
of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting.  Such testimony should address the zoning 
ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning Commission welcomes 
your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the Commission may consider additional 
subjects as well.  This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend.  

  

WIFI Passcode: 
           guestwifi 



P a g e  | 2 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced 

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113. 

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient 
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land 
Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.  

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria 
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff 
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be 
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at 
3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113. 

 

 

 

  



P a g e  | 3 The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, advanced 

notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development Department at 541-367-8113. 

Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings 

o Open each Hearing individually 

o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130) 

o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)  

o At the commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement 

shall be made to those in attendance that: 

READ:  “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 

evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use 

regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied 

by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 

respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.” 

o Declarations by the Commission:  

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of 

making an objective decision based on the merits of the case. 

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any 

financial or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed. 

o Ex Parte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information 

received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony.  If a member of the Planning 

Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs 

to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and 

the rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it.  In that way it can be rebutted and can be 

discussed openly. 

o Staff Report 

o Review of application 

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used 

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to 

clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information. 

o Testimony 
o Applicant’s Testimony 
o Proponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application 
o Opponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application 
o Neutral Testimony 

o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application. 
o Rebuttal  

o Close Public Hearing 
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners 

o Motion 
▪ Approval 
▪ Denial 
▪ Approval with Conditions 
▪ Continue  

o If there is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council.  The Planning Commission 
shall set the number of days for the appeal period.  At the time the City Council goes through the Public 
Hearing Process all over again. 
o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision. 
o If you have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the 

Planning Commission.  Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking. 
 



 

P a g e  | 1 

         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
PLANNING COMMISSION  
MEETING MINUTES   
July 1, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Annex, 1140 12th Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 
 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call of Commissioners:  

Present: Commission Wolthuis; Commissioner Jurney; Commissioner Stephens; Commissioner Herb; 
Commissioner Parker 

Absent (Excused):   Chairperson Gatchell; Commissioner Korn 

Staff: Blair Larsen, CEDD Director; Angela Clegg, Assoc. Planner; Dana Nichols, COG Planner; Sophie 
McGinley, COG Planner 

Visitors: None 

Public Comment.   None 

Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes:  

• March 18, 2019  

Comments Included: Corrections on page 4 made by Commissioner Jurney. Commissioner Wolthuis 
asked to verify the motions for reopening the hearing on page 4. Angela will listen to the recording 
and verify. 

Commissioner Stephens moved to approve the March 18, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting 
Minutes with stated corrections. 
Commissioner Jurney seconded the motion to approve the March 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes with 
corrections. 
 
Question was called  

Aye 5 
Nay 0 
Absent 2 

Motion Approved (5) Ayes to (0) Nays 
 

• April 15, 2019 
 
Comments Included: Corrections on Page 3 and 4 stated by Commissioner Jurney. 
 
Commissioner Jurney moved to approve the April 15, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting 
Minutes with stated corrections. 
Commissioner Stephens seconded the motion to approve the April 15, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
with stated corrections. 
 

Question was called  
Aye 5 
Nay 0 
Absent 2 

Motion Approved (5) Ayes to (0) Nays 



 

P a g e  | 2 

 
Public Hearing. File VR19-05:  The applicant had requested to withdraw the application.  
 

Staff Update on Planning Projects: 

• McGinley spoke briefly about the new House Bill 2001. States that cities with a population over 
10,000 must allow duplexes on residential lots. No more exclusive single-family zoning. Code 
language must be in place by June 30, 2021. 

• August 5, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting will be held at the Police Station Conference Room at 
1950 Main Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386 at 6:30 PM. 

• September 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting will be at the New City Hall Conference Room 
located at 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386 at 6:30 PM. 
 
Commissioner Jurney reminded the commissioners that September 2nd is Labor Day. It was put 
before the Commission to either hold the meeting September 3rd, 9th or 16th.  Make a decision by the 
August 5, 2019 meeting. 

Training: led by Sophie McGinley, COG Planner 

• McGinley presented a PowerPoint and provided a 1-page summary on Land Use 101 (Attachment 
A).  

Commissioners had discussions with McGinley and Nichols throughout the presentation.   

Adjourned at 8:00 PM 

 

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled.  If you have a disability that requires 
accommodation, advanced notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development 
Office at (541) 367-8113.  

Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community and 
Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the meeting 
and give testimony verbally.  Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so by the Chair 
of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting.  Such testimony should address the zoning 
ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning Commission welcomes 
your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the Commission may consider additional 
subjects as well.  This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend.  

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient 
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land 
Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.  

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria 
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff 
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be 
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at 
1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113. 

To the best of the recollection of the members of the Planning Commission, the foregoing is a true 

copy of the proceedings of the Public Meeting of July 1, 2019. 

              
       _______________________________ 
       Henry Wolthuis Vice Chairperson 
       Sweet Home Planning Commission 
 

Respectfully submitted by: Angela Clegg, Associate Planner 



 

P a g e  | 3 

Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings 

o Open each Hearing individually 

o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130) 

o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)  

o At the commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement 

shall be made to those in attendance that: 

READ:  “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 

evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use 

regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied 

by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 

respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.” 

o Declarations by the Commission:  

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of 

making an objective decision based on the merits of the case. 

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any 

financial or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed. 

o Ex Parte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information 

received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony.  If a member of the Planning 

Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs 

to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and 

the rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it.  In that way it can be rebutted and can be 

discussed openly. 

o Staff Report 

o Review of application 

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used 

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to 

clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information. 

o Testimony 
o Applicant’s Testimony 
o Proponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application 
o Opponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application 
o Neutral Testimony 

o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application. 
o Rebuttal  

o Close Public Hearing 
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners 

o Motion 
▪ Approval 
▪ Denial 
▪ Approval with Conditions 
▪ Continue  

o If there is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council.  The Planning Commission 
shall set the number of days for the appeal period.  At the time the City Council goes through the Public 
Hearing Process all over again. 
o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision. 
o If you have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the 

Planning Commission.  Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking. 
 



 

History 

Governor Tom McCall’s Senate Bill 100 Passes in 

1973 and creates: 

- Department of Land Conservation and 

Development (DLCD) 

- Land Conservation and Development 

Commission (LCDC) 

- Urban Growth Boundaries (UGB) 

- Statewide Planning Goals 

Goals* 

1. Citizen Involvement 

2. Land Use Planning 

3. Agricultural Lands 

4. Forest Lands 

5. Open spaces, scenic and historic areas 

and natural resources 

6. Air, water and land resource quality 

7. Areas subject to natural disasters and 

hazards 

8. Recreation needs 

9. Economy of the state 

10. Housing 

11. Public facilities and services 

12. Transportation 

13. Energy 

14. Urbanization 

* Applicable to Sweet Home 

Sweet Home Plans 

- 1994 Sweet Home Downtown 

Redevelopment Assessment Report 

- 2000 Local Wetland Inventory 

- 2003 Oregon Downtown Development 

Association Report 

- 2003/2010 Comprehensive Plan 

- 2005 Transportation System Plan 

- 2010 Sweet Home Downtown Retail 

Market Analysis 

- 2014 Park System Master Plan 

- 2014 Sweet Home Livability Assessment 

Land Use Actions in Sweet Home 

- Property Line Adjustment 

- Annexation 

- Partition 

- Subdivision 

- Conditional Use Permit 

- Variance 

- Map Amendment 

Types of Hearings 

Legislative - create and adopt as law general 

policies and regulations for future land use 

within a jurisdiction. Examples include the 

adoption or revision of a comprehensive plan, 

zoning regulations, or a subdivision ordinance. 

LCDC goals must be considered for legislative 

land-use decisions. 

Quasi-Judicial - apply the law to specific land 

development or use proposals. Examples of 

quasi-judicial decisions include small-tract 

zoning designations, conditional use permits, 

and major land divisions. They typically involve 

the exercise of discretion by the decision-

making official or body in applying general 

criteria of the plan or ordinance to the facts of a 

land development application. Quasi-judicial 

decisions always involve the property rights of 

specific persons. 

Ministerial or Administrative - apply "clear and 

objective standards" for which the local 

government provides no right to a hearing. 

These decisions that are delegated to staff with 

the appropriate safeguards for the rights and 

interests of the affected parties. Examples 

include property line adjustments. 

Application Review 

Final action on most applications within 120 

days of the application being deemed complete. 

Applicants must be advised of any missing 

information within 30 days of submittal and 

have 180 days to respond. 



 

Type of Decision Notification Hearings Findings Appeal 

Legislative Notice must be 
provided 
consistent with 
local policies--but 
also to specific 
groups, agencies 
and LCDC if 
application of 
goals is involved 

All local legislative 
land -use actions 
are required to be 
taken after a 
public hearing. 

Goal 2 requires 
land-use decisions 
have an 
"adequate factual 
base". These 
decisions must be 
supported by 
written findings. 

Land use 
decisions are 
subject to appeal 
only to LUBA. The 
scope of review 
only includes a 
determination of 
consistency with 
LCDC goals and 
the local 
comprehensive 
plan 

Quasi-Judicial Must identify the 
type of land use 
decision to be 
made and the 
time and place of 
the hearings 

Parties are 
entitled to 
present and rebut 
evidence 
presented by 
others. The 
proponent has 
the burden of 
proof. Evidence 
that is not 
included in 
testimony or as 
part of the record 
may not be cited 
as a basis for the 
decision 

Decisions are not 
final until written 
findings have 
been adopted by 
the decision-
making body. 
Failure to prepare 
and adopt 
"adequate" 
findings can result 
in reversal or 
remand of a 
decision. 

The law requires 
that a notice of a 
quasi-judicial 
decision be sent 
to all parties of 
the preceding. 
Decisions can be 
appealed directly 
to LUBA, but 
jurisdictions can 
provide more 
than one level of 
appeal. 

Ministerial or 
Administrative 

No required, but 
generally 
provided 

Not required*. 
 

Not required.  

* May be required if there is a partition involving an access easement or if there is an appeal of a 

ministerial or administrative decision. 

Resources: 

DLCD Representative: Patrick Wingard patrick.wingard@state.or.us 

www.oregon.gov/LCD 

www.sweethomeor.gov/ced/page/planning-division  

http://www.co.linn.or.us/index.php?content=planning  

 

mailto:patrick.wingard@state.or.us
mailto:patrick.wingard@state.or.us
http://www.oregon.gov/LCD
http://www.oregon.gov/LCD
http://www.sweethomeor.gov/ced/page/planning-division
http://www.sweethomeor.gov/ced/page/planning-division
http://www.co.linn.or.us/index.php?content=planning
http://www.co.linn.or.us/index.php?content=planning


 

P a g e  | 1 

         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
PLANNING COMMISSION  
MEETING MINUTES   
August 5, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
Police Department Conference Room, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 

 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call of Commissioners:  

Present: Commissioner Wolthuis, Commissioner Jurney, Commissioner Stephens, Commissioner 
Parker 
 
Absent (Excused):    Chairperson Gatchell, Commissioner Herb, Commissioner Korn 
 
Staff: Blair Larsen, CEDD Director; Angela Clegg, Assoc. Planner; Joe Graybill, Staff Engineer 
 
Visitors: 
 Scott Rice, 28853 Liberty Rd, Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 Cole Rinehart, ATS, 2475 Harding Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 James Metzger, ATS, 2463 Harding Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 David R Staup, 1088 W 35th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 

Public Comment.  None 

Review and Approval of Meeting Minutes: 
 

• May 6, 2019 
 

Comments Included: No comments 
 
Commissioner Jurney moved to approve the May 6, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
 
Commissioner Parker seconded the motion to approve the May 6, 2019 Meeting Minutes. 
 

Question was called  
Aye 4 
Nay 0 
Absent 3 
Motion Approved (4) Ayes to (0) Nays 

 
Public Hearing Continuation for File P19-04 & VR19-04: The applicant is requesting to partition a 42,235 
square foot property into three parcels. Proposed Parcel 1 would contain 10,890 square feet. Proposed 
Parcel 2 would contain 10,890 square feet. Proposed Parcel 3 would contain 16,331 square feet (not 
including the flag pole). The applicant is also seeking a variance to reduce the minimum lot width at front 
building line from 80 feet to 72.50 feet on proposed Parcel 1 and 72.61 feet on proposed Parcel 2 to have 
the minimum 25-foot frontage width for proposed Parcel 3. The subject property is in the Residential Low-
Density (R-1) Zone. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 6:40 PM 



 

P a g e  | 2 

Vice Chair Wolthuis read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and evidence 
must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use regulation 
which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by 
statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.    

Personal Bias:  No 
Conflict of Interest:  No 
Exparte Information:  Commissioner Jurney has a friend that lives in the neighborhood. Jurney drives past 
the property occasionally.  

Staff:  Assoc. Planner Clegg read the recommendations and conditions of approval.  Commissioners had 
no questions for staff. 
 
Applicant: James Metzger, 1133 Karrisdale Drive SE, Albany, OR 97322 testified on behalf of his 
application. The applicant presented a new site plan via his cell phone.  It was shown to staff.   
 
Assoc. Planner Clegg drew a rough sketch on the whiteboard for Commissioners to see. The applicant, 
Commissioners and staff discussed the sketch finding it did not meet the variance criteria either because 
the middle lot does not front a public street. CEDD director Larsen directed the Commissioners to decide 
based on what is proposed at the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Jurney stated that the decision should be made based on the application as presented in the 
packet. Commissioner Stephens asked if the driveway will be paved all the way to the third lot. A discussion 
proceeded between Staff Engineer Graybill and the applicant regarding the driveway and access. 
 
Testimony in Favor:  None 
Testimony in Opposition:  None 
Neutral Testimony:  None 
Rebuttal:  None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:06 PM 

Planning Commission discussed the application. 

Commissioner Jurney:  stated that the application does not meet the variance criteria and recommends 
denial. 
Commissioner Wolthius: Disagreed with Commissioner Jurney and wanted to find a way to pass the 
application. 
Chair Gatchell: Absent 
Commissioner Stephens: agrees that the application does not meet criteria, but wants to figure out a 
way to pass it so the property can be developed. 
Commissioner Herb: Absent 
Commissioner Korn: Absent 
Commissioner Parker:  agreed with Commissioner Jurney that the application does not meet the 
variance criteria. 
 
Staff and Commissioners discussed the two options that the applicant presented. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING REOPENED AT 7:26 PM 
 
The Commissioners asked the Mr. Metzger if he would be willing to make additional changes to present to 
the Commissioners.  Mr. Metzger agreed. The Commissioners discussed the option of continuing the 
hearing. The decision was made to not continue the hearing and to vote at the meeting.  The applicant can 
submit new site plans based on the discussions during the meeting. 
 



 

P a g e  | 3 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:10 PM 
 

Commissioner Jurney moved to deny the Application P19-04 & VR19-04 and moved to deny the 
continuation of the Public Hearing to the September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting and hereby 
direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision. A 12-day appeal 
period is set from the date of the mailing of the decision. 

 
Commissioner Parker seconded the motion to deny the Application P19-04 & VR19-04 and moved to deny 
the continuation of the Public Hearing to the September 3, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting. 

Question was called  
Aye 2 
Nay 2 
Absent 3 
Motion Failed (2) Ayes to (2) Nays 

Staff Recommended to the Commissioners to rehear the application at the September Planning 
Commission meeting with the new site plan presented by the applicant. 

 

Public Hearing. File P19-06 & CU19-08:  The applicant is requesting to partition a 78,750 square foot lot 
(Tax Lot 3700 of Map E29) in the Recreation Commercial (RC) Zone into two parcels: 46,349 square feet in 
proposed Parcel 1 and 32,401 square feet in proposed Parcel 2. The applicant is also requesting a 
Conditional Use Permit to build a home on Parcel 2, a requirement for residential uses not related to or in 
conjunction with a recreational development in the RC Zone. Parcel 2 has an existing pole building that will 
remain on the property. Parcel 1 has an existing home and the use of Parcel 1 will not change. The 
Conditional Use application is dependent on approval of the partition. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 7:29 PM 

Vice Chair Wolthuis read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and evidence 
must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use regulation 
which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by 
statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.    

Personal Bias:  No 
Conflict of Interest:  No 
Exparte Information:  No 

Staff:  Assoc. Planner Clegg read the recommendations and conditions of approval.  Commissioners had 
no questions for staff. 
 
Commissioner Jurney directed a question to Staff Engineer Graybill regarding the addressing of the 
properties. Graybill explained the address assignment criteria. 
 
Applicant:  Scott Rice, 28853 Liberty Road, Sweet Home, OR 97386 testified on behalf of his application 
and gave a brief family history of the property.  Planning Commissioners had no questions for the applicant. 
 
Testimony in Favor: None 
Testimony in Opposition: None 
Neutral Testimony: None 
Rebuttal: None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:38 PM 



 

P a g e  | 4 

Planning Commission discussed the application. 

Commissioner Jurney: had no issues with the application. 
Commissioner Wolthius: had no issues with the application. 
Chair Gatchell: Absent 
Commissioner Stephens: had no issues with the application. 
Commissioner Herb: Absent 
Commissioner Korn: Absent 
Commissioner Parker: had no issues with the application. 

 
Question was called  

Aye 4 
Nay 0 
Absent 3 

Motion Approved (4) Ayes to (0) Nays 
 

Commissioner Jurney moved to approve applications P19-06 &CU19-08 and thereby permit the partition 
and conditional use proposed at 1410 Clark Mill Road, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; adopting the findings 
of fact listed in Section III of the staff report, the setting of a 12-day appeal period from the date of the 
mailing of the decision, and hereby direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize 
this decision. 

Commissioner Stephens seconded the motion to approve Applications P19-06 & CU19-08. 

 

Public Hearing. File P19-08 & VR19-06:  The applicant is requesting to partition a 20,812 square foot 
property into two parcels in the Low Density Residential (R-1) Zone. Proposed Parcel 1 is a 9,212 square 
foot flag lot (not including the flag pole). Proposed Parcel 2 is a 8,625 square foot lot. The applicant is also 
seeking a variance to reduce the required lot width for proposed Parcel 2, listed in SHMC 17.24.040(B), 
from 80 feet to 75 feet for Parcel 2. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 7:42 PM 

Vice Chair Wolthuis read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and evidence 
must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use regulation 
which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by 
statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.    

Personal Bias:  No 
Conflict of Interest:  No 
Exparte Information:  No 

Staff:  Assoc. Planner Clegg read the recommendations and conditions of approval.  Commissioners had 
no questions for staff. 
 
Applicant:  David Staup, 3167 Blueberry Hill Road, Lebanon, OR testified on behalf of his application. Mr. 
Staup gave a history of the property and demolition of the building that were previously on the subject 
property. 
 
Commissioner Jurney asked the Applicant if he considered not partitioning and just building one house.  Mr. 
Staup replied that he did not.  There were originally two homes and he wanted to place two new homes on 
the property and improve the neighborhood. 
 
Commissioner Parker asked if the applicant had a report on the well water. One well was closed off and 
cemented in.  The second has been cleaned out and a new pump added. Water was tested and passed for 
drinking water purposes. The homes will share the single well. 



 

P a g e  | 5 

 
Testimony in Favor: None 
Testimony in Opposition: None 
Neutral Testimony: None 
Rebuttal: None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:50 PM 

Planning Commission discussed the application. 

Commissioner Jurney: not in favor of the application. Does not meet criteria. 
Commissioner Wolthius: feels the variance should be allowed in order to develop the property. 
Chair Gatchell: Absent 
Commissioner Stephens: agrees with Commissioner Jurney. 
Commissioner Herb: Absent 
Commissioner Korn: Absent 
Commissioner Parker: not in favor of the application. It’s closer to the criteria but does not meet criteria. 

 
Commissioner Jurney moved to deny applications P19-08 & VR19-06 and hereby direct staff to prepare 
an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision. A 21-day appeal period is set from the date 
of the mailing of the decision.  

 
Commissioner Parker seconded the motion to deny Applications P19-08 & VR19-06. 

Question was called  
Aye 3 
Nay 1 
Absent 3 

Motion Denied (3) Ayes to (1) Nays 
 
 
Public Hearing. File LA19-01: This legislative amendment consists of text amendments to Title 17and Title 
17 of the Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC); Zoning Ordinance. Staff is in the process of preparing a 
new draft development code; however, there are several code updates that are needed now to facilitate 
administration of the planning program. Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission and City Council 
review the code amendments and direct staff to move these updates through the public text amendment 
review process prior to completion of our comprehensive code update. 
This proposal includes amendments to following chapters of the SHMC: 16.08.010, Appeal; 17.12.090, 
Appeals; 16.16.030, Procedures; 17.12.20, Public Hearings on Amendments; 17.12.080, Notice of Land 
Use Decisions; 17.04.030, Definitions; 17.08.100, Access and Driveways; 17.88.040, Criteria; 17.08.050 
Considerations; Addition of 17.12.085, Call by the City Manager. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 8:02 PM 

Vice Chair Wolthuis read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and evidence 
must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use regulation 
which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by 
statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 
respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.    

Personal Bias:  No 
Conflict of Interest:  No 
Exparte Information:  No 

Staff:  Assoc. Planner Clegg read the recommendations and conditions of approval.  
 



 

P a g e  | 6 

A discussion between staff and the commissioners ensued about past conversations and actions by the City 
Manager.  CEDD Director Larsen stated that he would meet with the City Manager and get his comments 
regarding the text amendments for SHMC 17.12.085. 
 
Assoc. Planner Clegg read page 5 of the LA19-01 staff report, prepared by COG Planner Dana Nichols, 
regarding the removal of SHMC 17.88.050 and 17.88.040 and replace with new criteria 17.88.040 from the 
Model Code. 
 
Planning Commission discussed the application. 

Commissioners discussed their wish to continue the public hearing for LA19-01.  There were 3 
Commissioners absent and the present Commissioners want to have all Commissioners present before 
they vote.   
 
Commissioner Jurney: requested that staff get a comment from the City Manager regarding Code 
Amendment 17.12.085 (A).  
Commissioner Wolthius: discussed the letter he submitted to the Commissioners regarding the code 
amendments.  Agreed with Commissioner Jurney to continue the public hearing.  
Chair Gatchell: Absent 
Commissioner Stephens: Agreed with Commissioner Jurney to continue the public hearing. 
Commissioner Herb: Absent 
Commissioner Korn: Absent 
Commissioner Parker. Agreed with Commissioner Jurney to continue the public hearing. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 8:13 PM 

Question was called  
Aye 4 
Nay 0 
Absent 3 

Motion Approved to continue hearing until the September 3, 2019 meeting (4) Ayes to (0) Nays 
 
 

Staff Update on Planning Projects 
 

a. September Planning Commission Meeting is on Labor Day.  Need to choose another date for the 
meeting. 
The Commissioners voted to hold the September meeting on Tuesday, September 3, 2019. 

 
Training/Workshop: HB 2001; led by Dana Nichols, COG Planner 
 

Dana Nichols, COG Planner, was unable to attend the August 5, 2019 meeting; therefore, the training 
was postponed until the September 3, 2019 meeting. 

 
 
Adjournment 8:16 PM 

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled.  If you have a disability that requires 
accommodation, advanced notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development 
Office at (541) 367-8113.  

Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community and 
Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the meeting 
and give testimony verbally.  Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so by the Chair 
of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting.  Such testimony should address the zoning 
ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning Commission welcomes 
your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal 



 

P a g e  | 7 

subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the Commission may consider additional 
subjects as well.  This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend.  

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient 
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land 
Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.  

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria 
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff 
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be 
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at 
1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113. 

 

To the best of the recollection of the members of the Planning Commission, the foregoing is a true 

copy of the proceedings of the Public Meeting of August 5, 2019. 

              
       _______________________________ 
       Henry Wolthuis Vice Chairperson 
       Sweet Home Planning Commission 
 

Respectfully submitted by: Angela Clegg, Associate Planner 

 

 

 

  



 

P a g e  | 8 

Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings 

o Open each Hearing individually 

o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130) 

o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)  

o At the commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement 

shall be made to those in attendance that: 

READ:  “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 

evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use 

regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied 

by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 

respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.” 

o Declarations by the Commission:  

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of 

making an objective decision based on the merits of the case. 

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any 

financial or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed. 

o Ex Parte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information 

received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony.  If a member of the Planning 

Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs 

to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and 

the rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it.  In that way it can be rebutted and can be 

discussed openly. 

o Staff Report 

o Review of application 

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used 

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to 

clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information. 

o Testimony 
o Applicant’s Testimony 
o Proponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application 
o Opponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application 
o Neutral Testimony 

o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application. 
o Rebuttal  

o Close Public Hearing 
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners 

o Motion 
▪ Approval 
▪ Denial 
▪ Approval with Conditions 
▪ Continue  

o If there is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council.  The Planning Commission 
shall set the number of days for the appeal period.  At the time the City Council goes through the Public 
Hearing Process all over again. 
o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision. 
o If you have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the 

Planning Commission.  Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking. 
 



 

P a g e  | 1 

         

CITY OF SWEET HOME    
PLANNING COMMISSION  
MEETING AGENDA   
September 3, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 3225 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call of Commissioners:  

Present: Chairperson Gatchell; Vice-Chair Wolthuis; Commissioner Jurney; Commissioner 
Stephens; Commissioner Herb, Commissioner Korn, Commissioner Parker 

Staff:  Blair Larsen, DECC Director; Ray Towry, City Manager; Angela Clegg, Assoc. Planner; Joe 
Graybill, Staff Engineer; Dana Nichols, COG Planner; Justin Peterson, COG Planner. 

Visitors: James Metzger, 1133 Kerrisdale Drive SE, Albany, OR 97322 

Public Comment. None 

Training/Workshop: HB 2001; led by Dana Nichols, COG Planner 

Assoc. Planner Clegg was unable to get the training PowerPoint up on the screen for the 
Commissioners to view.  Clegg will email a copy of the PowerPoint to the Commissioners for 
review and comment. 

COG Planner Nichols gave a brief summary of HB 2001.  CEDD Director Larsen added 
comments to Nichols presentation. Changes don’t need to be in place until June 2022. 

There was a brief discussion on the presentation between staff and the commissioners. 

Public Hearing Continuation for File P19-04 & VR19-04: The applicant is requesting to partition a 
42,235 square foot property into three parcels. Proposed Parcel 1 would contain 10,890 square feet. 
Proposed Parcel 2 would contain 10,890 square feet. Proposed Parcel 3 would contain 16,256 
square feet (not including the flag pole). The applicant is seeking a variance to use the flag pole of 
Parcel 3 as an access easement for Parcels 1 and 2. The subject property is in the Residential Low-
Density (R-1) Zone. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 6:45 PM 

Chair Gatchell read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land 
use regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue 
accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the 
parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of 
Appeals based on that issue.    

Personal Bias:  No 
Conflict of Interest:  No 
Exparte Information:  No. Commission Herb drove by the property. 

Staff:  Assoc. Planner Clegg read the recommendations and conditions of approval using the new 
site plan submitted by the applicant during the August 5, 2019 Planning Commission meeting. 



 

P a g e  | 2 

COG Planner Nichols stated that all three lots meet the minimum requirements for lot size in the 
zone, but do not meet the requirements for a variance. Nichols stated that the reasons for the 
recommendation of denial, the variance and the joint driveway, are the topics that are coming up 
time and again. This is the reason for the Code Amendment update discussions. 
 
There was a brief discussion about which way the houses will face.  COG Planner Nichols pointed 
out that the development does not apply to this application. 
 
Commissioner Gatchell asked COG Planner Nichols to elaborate on the variance criteria and how 
the application does not meet criteria.  Nichols read through each criterion and explained each. 
Nichols explained that the applicant must meet all the criteria, not just one or two in order to comply. 
 
Applicant:  James Metzger, 1133 Kerrisdale Drive SE, Albany, OR 97322 testified on behalf of his 
application. Gave a brief history of the process he has gone through for over two years in order to 
develop the property. Mr. Metzger mentioned that he was working on a third site plan that would add 
an additional flag pole for lot 2, so not lots would share a driveway and they would all have access to 
Harding street. Due to the holiday weekend Mr. Metzger was unable to get the third option ready for 
the September 3, 2019 meeting. 
 
Commissioner Stephens asked the applicant about the position of the houses to be built on the lots.  
Mr. Metzger explained his proposed building site plan.  
 
Testimony in Favor: None 
Testimony in Opposition: None 
Neutral Testimony: None 
Rebuttal: None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:10 PM 

Planning Commission discussed the application. 

Commissioner Jurney: Criteria is not met. Does not want to allow a variance for one property but not 
another.  Wants to stick with criteria. 
Commissioner Wolthius: Wants to pass something so that the applicant can develop the lot. 
Chair Gatchell: Not in favor of some applicants being able to break code and others not.  Criteria is 
not met, so not in favor of the application. 
Commissioner Stephens: fells that the applicant should eb able to build something on his lot and the 
planning commission should help him figgure out how. 
Commissioner Herb: Agrees with Commissioner Wolthuis.  Feels there is plenty of room to develop 
and wanted to figure out a solution for the applicant. 
Commissioner Korn: Lot sizes are large enough but does not like the shared driveway with Lot 2. Its 
close and wants to try to do something so the applicant can develop. 
Commissioner Parker: Lot sizes are great, but criteria are not met. Harding Street will benefit from 
development 
 
CEDD Director Larsen made a comment about the code not meeting the needs of the community.  
Larsen mentioned other options that could work without a variance including a second flag pole for 
Lot 2.  Assoc. Planner Clegg commented that with a second flag lot going to Parcel 2 that Parcel 1 
would still have over 9,000 square feet and therefore meets the lot size criteria of the zone. 
 
There was a brief discussion about the location of the second flag pole.  
 
The applicant would have to submit a new application with the double flag pole scenario.  If the 
applicant chooses to do that, it would not have to go to the planning commission since there will be 
no variances or shared driveways proposed.  
 



 

P a g e  | 3 

CEDD Director Larsen stated that this application is an example of why the City needs code text 
amendments. 
 
Commissioner Wolthuis asked to reopen the hearing to discuss the options with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REOPENED AT 7:27 PM 
 
Chair Gatchell asked the applicant if the design with the 2nd flag pole is acceptable.  The applicant 
said he was.  The applicant asked how long the code updates may take. Chair Gatchell stated that it 
could take 6 months or more.  The applicant said he is willing to design the double flag lot so that he 
can move forward with the development of his property. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:30 PM 
 
Commisioner Jurney moved to deny the Application P19-04 & VR19-04 and hereby direct staff to 
prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision. A 12-day appeal period is 
set from the date of the mailing of the decision. 
 
Commissioner Parker seconded the motion to deny the Application P19-04 & VR19-04  

Question was called  
Aye 4 
Nay 3 
Absent 0 

Motion Denied (4) Ayes to (3) Nays 
 

Chair Gatchell moved to take a 5-minute break. 

 

Public Hearing Continuation for File LA19-01: This legislative amendment consists of text 
amendments to Title 16 and Title 17 of the Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC); Zoning 
Ordinance. Staff is in the process of preparing a new draft development code; however, there are 
several code updates that are needed now to facilitate administration of the planning program. Staff 
is requesting that the Planning Commission and City Council review the code amendments and 
direct staff to move these updates through the public text amendment review process prior to 
completion of our comprehensive code update. 

This proposal includes amendments to following chapters of the SHMC: 16.08.010, Appeal; 
17.12.090, Appeals; 16.16.030, Procedures; 17.12.20, Public Hearings on Amendments; 17.12.080, 
Notice of Land Use Decisions; 17.04.030, Definitions; 17.08.100, Access and Driveways; 17.88.040, 
Criteria; 17.08.050 Considerations; Addition of 17.12.085, Call by the City Manager. 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 7:40 PM 

Chair Gatchell read the description of the application and the Planning Commission proceeding 
process rules and regulations. 

The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 
evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land 
use regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue 
accompanied by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the 
parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of 
Appeals based on that issue.    

Staff:  COG Planner Nichols stated that 17.12.150 Enforcement is missing from the agenda but is in 
the staff report. 
 



 

P a g e  | 4 

Commissioner Gatchell asked why there was a continuation for the hearing. Assoc. Planner Clegg 
explained that at the August 5, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the commissioners felt that they 
wanted all the commissioners present to vote on the code amendments. 
 
Commissioner Stephens state that another reason the commissioners chose to continue the hearing 
was to get a statement from the City Manager. Commissioner Gatchell stated his understanding of 
the code. COG Planner Nichols reminded the commissioners of the memo form the City Manager 
included in their packets.  
 
City Manager Ray Towry explained the code and the City Charter that regulates the rolls and 
responsibilities of the City Manager. Getting the codes revised will help alleviate some of the 
applications that come before the Planning Commission and are denied. 
 
Chairman Gatchell recommended to the Commissioners to move the code amendments to City 
Council. 
 
Commissioner Gatchell asked to have the code amendments corrected and moved to  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED AT 7:52 PM 

Commissioner Jurney moved to approve application LA19-01 and hereby direct staff to prepare a 
Request for Council Action and Ordinance Bill and recommend the code amendments to the City 
Council. 

Commissioner Herb seconded the motion to approve application LA19-01 and recommend the 
code amendments to the City Council. 

Roll Call Vote: 
 

Commissioner Jurney: Aye 
Commissioner Wolthius: Aye 
Chair Gatchell: Aye 
Commissioner Stephens: Aye 
Commissioner Herb: Aye 
Commissioner Korn: Aye 
Commissioner Parker: Aye 

 
Motion Approved (7) Ayes to (0) Nays 
 

Staff Update on Planning Projects 

Planning Commission Retreat: date and time discussion. CEDD Director discussed the purpose 
of the retreat.  Assoc. Planner Clegg will send out a Doodle Pole to narrow down retreat dates. 

Assoc. Planner Clegg mentioned the Harvest Festival and invited the Commissions to the 
Festival and to the Ground Breaking for the Phase II Project. 

Adjournment 7:58 PM 

 

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled.  If you have a disability that requires 
accommodation, advanced notice is requested by notifying the Community and Economic Development 
Office at (541) 367-8113.  

Persons interested in commenting on these issues should submit testimony in writing to the Community and 
Economic Development Department Office located in City Hall prior to the hearing or attend the meeting 
and give testimony verbally.  Persons who wish to testify will be given the opportunity to do so by the Chair 
of the Commission at the Planning Commission meeting.  Such testimony should address the zoning 
ordinance criteria which are applicable to the request. The Sweet Home Planning Commission welcomes 
your interest in these agenda items. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal 



 

P a g e  | 5 

subjects anticipated to be considered at the meeting; however, the Commission may consider additional 
subjects as well.  This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend.  

The failure of an issue to be raised in a hearing, in person or by letter, or failure to provide sufficient 
specificity to afford the decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land 
Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.  

A copy of the application, all documents and evidence relied upon by the applicant and applicable criteria 
are available for inspection at no cost and a copy will be provided at reasonable cost. A copy of the staff 
report will be available for inspection at no cost at least seven days prior to the hearing and a copy will be 
provided at reasonable cost. Please contact the Community and Economic Development Department at 
3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386; Phone: (541) 367-8113. 

 

To the best of the recollection of the members of the Planning Commission, the foregoing is a true 

copy of the proceedings of the Public Meeting of September 3, 2019. 

              
       _______________________________ 
       Lance Gatchell, Chairperson 
       Sweet Home Planning Commission 
 

Respectfully submitted by: Angela Clegg, Associate Planner 

 

 

  



 

P a g e  | 6 

Planning Commission Process and Procedure for Public Hearings 

o Open each Hearing individually 

o Review Hearing Procedure (SHMC 17.12.130) 

o Hearing Disclosure Statement (ORS 197.763)  

o At the commencement of a hearing under a comprehensive plan or land use regulation, a statement 

shall be made to those in attendance that: 

READ:  “The applicable substantive criteria are listed in the staff report. Testimony, arguments and 

evidence must be directed toward the criteria described or other criteria in the plan or land use 

regulation which the person believes to apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied 

by statements or evidence sufficient to afford the decision maker and the parties an opportunity to 

respond to the issue precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue.” 

o Declarations by the Commission:  

o Personal Bias - Prejudice or prejudgment of the facts to such a degree that an official is incapable of 

making an objective decision based on the merits of the case. 

o Conflict of Interest - Does any member of the Commission or their immediate family have any 

financial or other interests in the application that has to be disclosed. 

o Ex Parte Information - The Planning Commission is bound to base their decision on information 

received in the Public Hearing and what is presented in testimony.  If a member of the Planning 

Commission has talked with an applicant or has information from outside the Public Hearing it needs 

to be shared at that time so that everyone in the audience has an opportunity to be aware of it and 

the rest of the Planning Commission is aware of it.  In that way it can be rebutted and can be 

discussed openly. 

o Staff Report 

o Review of application 

o Discussion of relative Criteria that must be used 

o During this presentation the members of the Planning Commission may ask questions of the staff to 

clarify the application or any part of the Zoning Ordinance or the applicable information. 

o Testimony 
o Applicant’s Testimony 
o Proponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in favor of the application 
o Opponents’ Testimony 

o Testimony from those wishing to speak in opposition of the application 
o Neutral Testimony 

o Testimony from those that are neither in favor nor in opposition of the application. 
o Rebuttal  

o Close Public Hearing 
o Discussion and Decision among Planning Commissioners 

o Motion 
▪ Approval 
▪ Denial 
▪ Approval with Conditions 
▪ Continue  

o If there is an objection to a decision it can be appealed to the City Council.  The Planning Commission 
shall set the number of days for the appeal period.  At the time the City Council goes through the Public 
Hearing Process all over again. 
o Recommendation made by Planning Commission—City Council makes final decision. 
o If you have a question, please wait until appropriate time and then direct your questions to the 

Planning Commission.  Please speak one at a time so the recorder knows who is speaking. 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
FROM:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
DATE:   August 30, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Proposed SHMC 17.12.085 Call by the City Manager 

 
  
At the last Planning Commission meeting, one of you asked for my understanding of the proposed 
amendment to the development code, the proposed SHMC 17.12.085, Call by the City Manager. 
 
The City Charter states that it is the duty of the City Manager “to see that all ordinances are 
enforced.” (Sweet Home Charter, Chapter VI, Section 20, Paragraph (c)(1)) Additionally, anyone 
in the State of Oregon has standing to appeal a land use decision. The proposed amendment is 
an effort to clarify the City Manager’s existing authority and outline the procedure for the use of 
that authority. A call by the City Manager is essentially an appeal filed by the City Manager. 
 
Land Use decisions have the potential to open the City up to significant liability, especially if they 
do not comply with our code. This amendment simply spells out the mechanism through which 
the City Manager can protect the City and enforce our ordinances. 
 
Please let me know if there are further questions. Thank you all for your service to the City. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Ray Towry 







 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 1 

 

 
 

Staff Report Presented to the Planning Commission 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit in order to establish a retail 
marijuana store in an existing building. The subject property contains 14,625 square feet and is 
in the Commercial Highway (C-2) Zone.   

APPLICANT: Rosa Cazares 

PROPERTY OWNER: Alaska Management LLC 

FILE NUMBER: CU19-07 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 4320 Highway 20, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the 
Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E28D Tax Lot 01300. 

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code Section(s) 17.80.  

HEARING DATE &TIME: October 7, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

HEARING LOCATION: City Hall at 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 97386 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg, Associate Planner 
 Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: aclegg@sweethomeor.gov 

REPORT DATE: September 30, 2019 

I. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

LOCATION: The subject property contains 14,625 square feet and is in the Commercial 
Highway (C-2) Zone.  Identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E28D Tax Lot 
300. The proposed business is located on the corner of Highway 20 and 43rd Avenue. 

ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 

Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Commercial Highway (C-2)  Highway Commercial 

Property North Commercial Highway (C-2) Highway Commercial 

Property East Commercial Highway (C-2) Highway Commercial 

Property South Commercial Highway (C-2) and 
Residential Low-Density (R-1) 

Highway Commercial 

Property West Commercial Highway (C-2) Highway Commercial 

City of Sweet Home 
3225 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.sweethomeor.gov 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 2 

 

 

Floodplain Based on a review of the September 29, 2010 FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 
41043C0914G, the subject property is located outside of the 100-year 
floodplain. 

Wetlands: Based on a review of the City of Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory and 
a review of the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the subject property does 
not contain inventoried wetlands.  

Access: The subject property has frontage along Highway 20 and has access from 
43rd Avenue. 

Services: The property is connected to City water and sewer. 

 

TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  

Mailed/Emailed Notice:   September 17, 2019 

Notice Published in Newspaper:  September 25, 2019 

Planning Commission Public Hearing: October 7, 2019 

120-Day Deadline:    January 10, 2020 

Notice was provided as required by SHMC 17.12.120 

 

II. COMMENTS 

Building Division: The Building Program has no issues with this request for a 
Conditional Use.  Please note that any changes or alterations to the 
structure, interior or exterior, will need to be reviewed by the Building 
Program, prior to work starting 

Engineering Division: Project & Location: Conditional Use CU19-07, at the corner of Main 
Street and 43rd Avenue.   

 Streets & Stormwater: 43rd Avenue is 40ft wide with approximately 
18ft of paving, Main Street is 100ft wide with 72ft of paving.  Drainage 
exists on Main St catch basins.  The submitted plan did not include 
improvements on 43rd Avenue, but subsequent discussions have 
provided the half-street improvements, due because of the 
commercial development of this property.   

 Water & Sanitary: The property is connected to city services. 

 Comments & Recommendations: Infrastructure Services does not any 
issues with the Conditional Use. 

Public Works Dept. Public Works has no issues with this request at this time. 
 

No other comments were received as of the writing of this staff report. 

 

III. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA 

The review and decision criteria for a conditional use permit are listed below in bold. Staff 
findings and analysis are provided under each review and decision criterion. The applicant’s 
findings are included in their written statement included in Attachment D. 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 3 

 

A. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or overlay zone, 
city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.80.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: The subject property is in the C-2 Zone. The applicant’s proposal consists of 
marijuana retail sales. A marijuana retailer may be established in the C-2 Zone as a conditional 
use under SHMC 17.36.030(J).  

For this application to comply with all applicable city codes and state and federal laws, this 
application may require additional permits. If this application is approved, staff recommends a 
condition of approval that prior to operation, the applicant shall obtain all required local, state, 
and federal permits.  The property owner shall obtain all necessary permits from the Building 
Division and Engineering Division. These permits may include, but are not limited to: building, 
electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits from the Building Division and a new or amended 
access permit from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) if needed. The applicant 
shall obtain all necessary permits from the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC).  The 
applicant shall submit copies of all required permits and licenses to the Sweet Home 
Community and Economic Development Department for inclusion in the record of CU19-07. 

B. The site size, dimensions, location, topography and access are adequate for the 
needs of the proposed use, considering, but not limited to, the following: 

      1.   Building size; 

      2.   Parking; 

      3.   Traffic; 

      4.   Noise; 

      5.   Vibration; 

      6.   Exhaust and emissions; 

      7.   Light and glare; 

      8.   Erosion; 

      9.   Odor; 

      10.   Dust; 

      11.   Visibility; 

      12.   Safety; 

      13.   Building, landscaping or street features. [SHMC 17.80.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: 

1. Building size – The proposed use would be in the existing building on the property, and the 
applicant has not requested to increase the footprint of that building. 

2. Parking and Traffic – The subject property is in the C-2 zone. The applicant would need to 
provide all parking as required by the applicable sections of SHMC Section 17.08.090. A 
retail store requires one space for every 200 square feet of floor area. The building that 
would accommodate the store contains 1,318 square feet. If the entire building is used, 10 
parking spaces would be required. The parking plan is included with the application. The 
parking lot shall be constructed in compliance will all applicable sections of the SHMC, 
including but not limited to all Stormwater drainage, surfacing, and dimensional standards.  

3. Noise – Based on the information provided in the application, no noise impact, beyond 
what is customary for a retail establishment is anticipated. 

4. Vibration – Based on a description of the proposal, no significant vibration would be 
created by the proposed use. 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 4 

 

5. Exhaust and emissions –The applicant is proposing a retail establishment only. The 
applicant has not proposed a use that would create exhaust or emissions. Odor impacts 
are discussed below.   

6. Light and glare – The applicant has not proposed any new outdoor lighting beyond lighting 
associated with the business sign. SHMC 17.36.090 provides exterior lighting standards in 
the C-2 Zone and would apply to any development on the property. That section states that 
“exterior lighting shall be located in such a manner so as not to face directly, shine or 
reflect glare onto a street, a highway or a lot in a residential zone."   

7. Erosion – The proposed use would be located within an existing building. No significant 
erosion impact is anticipated. 

8. Odor – Pedestrian access to the store would likely occur from Highway 20. In order to 
minimize the potential for odor impacts from the property, staff recommends that a 
condition of approval should require that no marijuana odor be permitted to leave the 
subject property. 

9. Dust – If parking is provided, the applicant would be required to maintain a hard surface 
parking lot. No additional sources of dust have been identified. 

10. Visibility –The proposed use would be located within an existing downtown building. 
Consequently, staff has not identified any significant visibility impacts that would result from 
operation of the proposed use. 

11. Safety – The applicant indicates a plan to install a security system. The proposed use 
would be regulated by the OLCC and would be required to comply with all applicable 
security standards. The applicant would need to acquire all applicable state and federal 
permits prior to operation of the proposed use. 

Also, any sign used to advertise the proposed use shall comply with the sign standards 
listed in SHMC 17.96 as well as any applicable Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) requirements. 

12. Building, landscaping or street features – The proposed use would be located within an 
existing building. As proposed, the building, landscaping, and street features in the area 
would be adequate to accommodate the proposed use. 

C. Any negative impacts of the proposed use on adjacent properties and on the public 
can be mitigated through application of other code standards, or other reasonable 
conditions of approval that include but are not limited to those listed in this chapter. 
[SHMC 17.80.040(C)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any negative impacts to adjacent properties. In order to 
ensure compliance with the standards listed in the SHMC, staff has included proposed 
conditions of approval that are listed in Section V of this report.  

D. All required public facilities have adequate capacity, as determined by the city, to 
serve the proposed use. [SHMC 17.80.040(D)] 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division submitted comments on this application and has no 
concerns. The subject property is currently served by City water and sewer.  

The application complies with this criterion. 

E. Marijuana facilities must be located in a fixed location. No temporary or mobile sites 
of any sort are allowed. [SHMC 17.80.040(F)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is proposing to establish the proposed marijuana facility in an 
existing building, which is a fixed location.  

The application complies with this criterion. 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 5 

 

F. Marijuana facilities may not have any drive-up services. [SHMC 17.80.040(G)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant has not proposed to offer drive up services. The application 
complies with this criterion. 

G. Marijuana facilities must be located at least 1,000 feet from the property boundary of 
any school. [SHMC 17.80.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Based on a review of the Sweet Home GIS, the nearest school is located 
approximately 5,300 feet to the south.  

The application complies with this criterion. 

H. Marijuana facilities must be sited on a property so as to be at least 100 feet from the 
boundary of any residentially zoned property. [SHMC 17.80.040(I)] 

Staff Findings: Based on a review of the Sweet Home Zoning map, the nearest residentially 
zoned property is located approximately 140 feet to the north.  

The application complies with this criterion.  

I. In approving a conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission may 
impose, in addition to those standards and requirements expressly specified by this 
chapter, additional conditions determined to be necessary to assure that the 
proposed development meets the decision criteria as well as the best interests of 
the surrounding properties, the neighborhood, and the city as a whole.  [SHMC 
17.80.050] 

Staff Findings: This provision of the SHMC allows the Planning Commission to impose 
conditions of approval. This is an opportunity for the Planning Commission to determine if 
conditions are needed in order to ensure compliance with the "decision criteria as well as the 
best interests of the surrounding properties, the neighborhood, and the city as a whole." As 
specified in SHMC 17.80.050, conditions could include, but are not limited to: expanding 
setbacks, limiting hours of operation, requiring site or architectural design features, imposing 
additional sign standards, and so forth.  

In order to ensure compliance with the standards listed in the SHMC, staff has included 
proposed conditions of development listed in Section V of this report. These conditions are 
primarily a customized list of existing local, state, and federal standards that apply to the 
application. Staff has also recommended a condition of approval that “no marijuana odor is 
permitted to leave the subject property." See recommended Condition 2. This condition is 
intended to minimize a potential negative externality from the retail operation. Staff thinks that 
this is an appropriate condition to impose since the business gains pedestrian access to the 
sidewalk on Highway 20.   

J. A conditional use permit shall be void one year after the date of the Planning 
Commission approval if the use has not been substantially established within that 
time period. [SHMC 17.80.070] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, staff recommends that a condition of approval 
require that the conditional use permit shall be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning 
Commission approval if the use has not been substantially established, as defined under 
SHMC 17.80.070(A), within that time period. The City Planner may grant one extension of up 
to one year for a conditional use permit that contained a one-year initial duration upon written 
request of the applicant and prior to the expiration of the approved period. Requests other than 
a one-year request made prior to the expiration of the approved period must be approved by 
the Planning Commission. A conditional use permit not meeting the above time frames will be 
expired and a new application will be required. 

 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 6 

 

IV. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

In acting on a Conditional Use permit application, the Planning Commission will hold a public 
hearing at which it may either approve or deny the application.  If the application is denied, the 
action must be based on the applicable review and decision criteria. If approved, the Planning 
Commission may impose conditions of approval.  Staff’s recommended conditions are included 
in Section V. 
 
Appeal Period: Pursuant to ORS 227.175, the Planning Commission may establish an appeal 
period of not less than 12 days from the date the written notice of the Planning Commission’s 
decision is mailed. Staff’s recommendation is that the Planning Commission’s decision on this 
matter be subject to a 12-day appeal period from the date that the notice of decision is mailed.  
 
Order: After the Planning Commission decides, staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission direct staff to prepare an order that is signed by the Chairperson of the Planning 
Commission. The Order would memorialize the decision and provide the official list of conditions 
(if any) that apply to the approval; if the application is approved.  
 
 

V. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS IF APPROVED 

If the Planning Commission approves this application, staff recommends that the conditions of 
approval listed below be required in order to ensure that the application is consistent with the 
findings in the Review and Decision Criteria (Section III) and as required by the Sweet Home 
Municipal Code and other provisions of law. Appeals to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) 
may only be based on Review and Decision Criteria contained in Section III.  

Recommended Conditions of Approval for CU19-07: 

1. The proposed marijuana retail store shall be located within the existing building located 
on the subject property. The proposed marijuana retail store shall be limited to the 
activities evaluated under this application.  

2. The use shall be operated so that no marijuana odor is permitted to leave the subject 
property. 

3. As required by SHMC 17.36.090, exterior lighting shall be in such a manner so as not to 
face directly, shine or reflect glare onto a street, a highway or a lot in a residential zone. 

4. Prior to operation, the applicant shall obtain all required local, state, and federal permits.  
The property owner shall obtain all necessary permits from the Building Division and 
Engineering Division. These permits may include, but are not limited to: building, 
electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits from the Building Division and a new or 
amended access permit from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT. The 
applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from the Oregon Liquor Control Commission 
(OLCC).  The applicant shall submit copies of all required permits and licenses to the 
Sweet Home Community and Economic Development Department for inclusion in the 
record of CU19-07. 

5. Parking shall be provided for the marijuana retail store as required by the SHMC. 
Parking facilities shall comply with all applicable sections of SHMC 17.08.090; including 
but not limited to all stormwater drainage, surfacing, and dimensional standards. All 
parking lots and driveway approaches shall be hard surfaced and permanently marked. 

6. Any sign used to advertise the proposed use shall comply with the sign standards listed 
in SHMC 17.96 as well as any applicable Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) 
requirements. 



 

 

 
Staff Report for Conditional Use Permit Application CU19-07 7 

 

7. The conditional use permit shall be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning 
Commission approval if the use has not been substantially established, as defined under 
SHMC 17.80.070(A), within that time period. The City Planner may grant one extension 
of up to one year for a conditional use permit that contained a one-year initial duration 
upon written request of the applicant and prior to the expiration of the approved period. 
Requests other than a one-year request made prior to the expiration of the approved 
period must be approved by the Planning Commission. A conditional use permit not 
meeting the above time frames will be expired and a new application will be required. 

 

VI. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A - Site Plan 

Attachment B -  Subject Property Map 

Attachment D - Information in the Record as of September 30, 2019; Including 
Application Materials.   





43RD

44TH

HWY 20

NANDINA

± 1 inch = 69 feet
Date: 8/7/2018

Subject Property
4320 Highway 20

13S01E28D001300





























8'0"
8'0"

8'0"
8'0"

8'0"

8'0"

8'0"

8'0"
ADA

43rd Ave

Highway 20

22’6”

23’


	2019-10-07 PC Agenda
	2019-07-01 PC Minutes_Draft
	2019-07-01 PC Minutes_Draft
	Land Use 101- 1 pager

	2019-08-05 PC Minutes_Draft
	2019-09-03 PC Minutes_Draft
	2019-09-03 PC Minutes_Draft
	Memo to Planning Commission 8-30-19
	Wolthuis Letter to PC

	CU19-07SR with Attachments
	CU19-07 Staff Report
	CU19-07 Site Plan
	CU19-07_Subject Property Map

	CU19-07 Application
	CU19-07 Site Plan Engineer Comments
	CU19-07_Sweet Home 2 Parking Plan



